

Senate Bill 592

Published  
December 15, 1965.

CHAPTER 433

AN ACT to repeal, renumber, amend, reenact and create various provisions of the statutes for the purpose of correcting errors, supplying omissions, clarifying language, correcting titles of departments and officers, correcting and clarifying references, renumbering for better location and arrangement, eliminating duplications and unnecessary and obsolete provisions, reconciling conflicts and repelling unintended repeals.

*The people of the state of Wisconsin, represented in senate and assembly, do enact as follows:*

SECTION 1. 13.35 (3) (e) of the statutes, as created by chapter 86 (Senate Bill 8), laws of 1965, is reenacted and 13.35 (3) (f) of the statutes, as renumbered from 13.35 (3) (e) by chapter 86, laws of 1965, is renumbered 13.35 (3m).

SECTION 2. 13.62 (5), 13.66 (1), 13.67 (1) and 13.68 of the statutes are amended to read:

13.62 (5) The ~~register~~ *file* of licensed lobbyists maintained by the secretary of state pursuant to s. 13.65.

13.66 (1) No person shall practice as a lobbyist unless he has been duly licensed under ~~the provisions of s. 13.63~~ and unless his name appears ~~upon the docket in the file~~ as employed in respect to such matters as he ~~shall be~~ *is* promoting or opposing. No principal shall directly or indirectly authorize or permit any lobbyist employed by him to practice lobbying in respect to any legislation affecting the pecuniary interest of such principal until such lobbyist is duly licensed and the name of such lobbyist is duly entered ~~on the docket in the file~~. No person shall be employed as a lobbyist for a compensation dependent in any manner upon the passage or defeat of any proposed or pending legislation or upon any other contingency connected with the action of the legislature or of either branch thereof or of any committee thereof.

13.67 (1) Every lobbyist required to have his name entered ~~upon the docket in the file~~ shall, within 10 days after the end of each calendar month of any regular or special session of the legislature, file with the secretary of state a sworn statement of expenses made and obligations

incurred by himself or any agent in connection with or relative to his activities as such lobbyist for the preceding month or fraction thereof, except that he need not list his own personal living and travel expenses in such statement.

13.68 Within 30 days after the sine die adjournment of the legislature, every principal whose name appears upon the docket in the file or who has employed any person to engage in any activity permitted under s. 13.70 shall file with the secretary of state a complete and detailed statement verified under oath by the person making the same, or in the case of a corporation by its president or treasurer, of all expenses paid or incurred by such principal in connection with the employment of lobbyists or in connection with promoting or opposing in any manner the passage by the legislature of any legislation affecting the pecuniary interest of such principal. The accounts shall be rendered in such the form as shall be prescribed by the secretary of state. Such accounts shall be open to public inspection.

SECTION 3. 15.22 (12) (k) of the statutes is repealed.

SECTION 4. 16.08 (2) (c) of the statutes, as amended by chapter 249 (Senate Bill 111), laws of 1965, is repealed and 16.08 (2) (c), as amended by chapter 76 (Assembly Bill 393), laws of 1965, is reenacted.

SECTION 5. The schedule of appropriations in 20.005 (2) of the statutes, as affected by 1965 acts, is amended by inserting the following letters designating the type of appropriations after the following section numbers:

| Section No.         | Appropriation Type |
|---------------------|--------------------|
| 20.430 (1) (a)..... | A                  |
| 20.460 (3) (v)..... | C                  |
| 20.460 (4) (v)..... | C                  |
| 20.650 (2) (b)..... | B                  |
| 20.705 (1) (a)..... | A                  |
| 20.760 (1) (a)..... | A                  |
| 20.760 (1) (g)..... | A                  |
| 20.830 (1) (a)..... | A                  |
| 20.830 (1) (g)..... | A                  |
| 20.830 (1) (x)..... | C                  |
| 20.830 (9) (w)..... | C                  |
| 20.830 (9) (x)..... | C                  |

SECTION 6. At the appropriate place in the schedule under section 20.005 (2) (a) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1965, the following lines are created to supply the dollar amount for the appropriation under section 20.230 of the statutes:

|   |        | 1965-66  | 1966-67  |
|---|--------|----------|----------|
| Minnesota-Wisconsin boundary area commission..... | 20.230 |          |          |
| General administration.....                       | (1)    | [12,500] | [12,500] |
| General purpose revenue                           |        |          |          |
| Gen. program opns.....                            | (a) A  | 12,500   | 12,500   |
| Program revenue                                   |        |          |          |
| Gifts and grants.....                             | (g) C  | —        | —        |

SECTION 7. At the appropriate place in the schedule under section 20.005 (2) (a) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1965, the following lines are created to supply the dollar amount for the appropriation under section 20.415 of the statutes:

|  |        | 1965-66 | 1966-67   |
|--|--------|---------|-----------|
| Higher educational aids, state commission..... | 20.415 |         |           |
| Administration.....                            | (1)    |         |           |
| General purpose revenue                        |        |         |           |
| Gen. program opns.....                         | (a) A  | 79,100  | 100,000   |
| Grants to students.....                        | (b) B  | 800,000 | 1,600,000 |

SECTION 8. At the appropriate place in the schedule under section 20.005 (2) (a) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1965, the following lines are created to supply the dollar amounts for the appropriation under section 20.417 of the statutes:

|  |        | 1965-66   | 1966-67   |
|--|--------|-----------|-----------|
| Higher education, co-ordinating committee for..... | 20.417 |           |           |
| Administration.....                                | (1)    | [145,000] | [154,000] |
| General purpose revenue                            |        |           |           |
| Gen. program opns.....                             | (a) A  | 145,000   | 154,000   |

SECTION 9. At the appropriate place in the schedule in section 20.005 (2) (a) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1965, the following lines are created to supply the dollar amounts for the appropriation under section 20.850 (1) (bm) of the statutes:

|  |        | 1965-66 | 1966-67 |
|--|--------|---------|---------|
| Vocational, technical and adult education.....                       | 20.850 |         |         |
| Vocational, technical and adult education for youth and adults ..... | (1)    |         |         |
| Technical training scholarships for Indians                          | (bm) A | 30,000  | 30,000  |

SECTION 10. 20.140 (3) (c) of the statutes is created to read:

20.140 (3) (c) *World's fair exhibit.* From the general fund \$50,000 as a nonlapsible appropriation for the purposes of continuing the Wisconsin pavilion during the 2nd year of the World's Fair, employing a resident manager to supervise the Wisconsin pavilion, Wisconsin exhibits and the world's largest cheese exhibit and 2 attendants, promotional releases and literature, providing a central rotunda information unit, and maintenance of the existing display areas.

SECTION 11. 20.170 (1) (g) of the statutes, as repealed and recreated by chapter 163 (Assembly Bill 903), laws of 1965, is amended to read:

20.170 (1) (g) All moneys received under ch. 169, but any unencumbered balance on June 30 of any year shall revert to the general fund.

SECTION 12. 20.170 (41) of the statutes, as amended by chapter 243 (Senate Bill 106), laws of 1965, is repealed.

SECTION 13. 20.180 (1) (b) of the statutes, as repealed and recreated by chapter 163 (Assembly Bill 903), laws of 1965, is amended to read:

20.180 (1) (b) The amounts in the schedule for the compensation and expenses of special counsel appointed as provided in ~~s. ss. 14.13 and 21.13.~~

SECTION 14. 20.230 (intro. par.) and (1) of the statutes, as created by chapter 274 (Senate Bill 345), laws of 1965, are amended to read:

20.230 There is appropriated from the general fund to the Minnesota-Wisconsin boundary area commission for the following programs:

(1) ~~On July 1, 1965, and annually thereafter, \$12,500~~ (a) The amounts in the schedule to cover the costs of the commission including the cost of the actual and necessary expenses incurred by the members of the commission and members of the advisory committees in the performance of their duties under s. 14.752 (1).

SECTION 15. 20.230 (41) of the statutes, as created by chapter 274 (Senate Bill 345), laws of 1965, is renumbered 20.230 (1) (g).

SECTION 16. 20.240 (2) (c) of the statutes, as created by chapter 163 (Assembly Bill 903), laws of 1965, is amended to read:

20.240 (2) (c) *New 4-year college institutions.* Biennially, the amounts in the schedule to be allocated by the commission for preliminary planning, surveys and architectural design of new collegiate institutions, as ~~may~~ be authorized by the 1965 legislature s. 39.024 (4). Of these amounts, a sum sufficient shall be used to reimburse the co-ordinating committee for higher education for any expenses incurred for this purpose.

SECTION 17. 20.280 (4) (a) and (g) of the statutes, as created by chapter 163 (Assembly Bill 903), laws of 1965, are reenacted.

SECTION 18. 20.280 (78m) of the statutes, as created by chapter 298 (Assembly Bill 928), laws of 1965, is renumbered 20.280 (3) (x) and (y) and amended to read:

20.280 (3) (x) *Princeton dam.* ~~A sum sufficient but not to exceed~~ A nonlapsible sum of \$60,000 for the repair of the Princeton dam on the Fox river as provided in s. 30.24 (2).

(y) *Federal funds, Princeton dam.* ~~Money~~ All moneys received from the federal land and water conservation fund for the purposes specified in par. (a) (x) and s. 30.24 (2) shall be paid into the conservation fund and are appropriated therefrom for said purposes.

SECTION 19. 20.281 of the statutes, as created by chapter 277 (Senate Bill 324), laws of 1965, is renumbered 20.280 (3) (b) and amended to read:

20.280 (3) (b) *Restoration, first capitol state park.* ~~There is appropriated to the conservation commission~~ From the general fund, on September 1, 1965, \$10,550 as a nonlapsible sum of \$10,550 appropriation to be used by the commission in co-operation with the state historical society in restoring the state's first capitol building, located in the First Capitol state park in the town of Belmont, Lafayette county, so that the said building will purvey to the visitor a realistic impression of the furnishing of the building at the time it was used as this state's capitol.

SECTION 20. 20.408 (1) (u) of the statutes, as created by chapter 247 (Senate Bill 485), laws of 1965, is repealed and 20.408 (1) (u) of the statutes, as created by chapter 163 (Assembly Bill 903), laws of 1965, is reenacted.

SECTION 21. 20.410 (53) and (53m) of the statutes, as created by chapter 176 (Senate Bill 281), laws of 1965, are renumbered 20.410 (1) (s) and (t).

SECTION 22. 20.415 of the statutes, as created by chapter 264 (Assembly Bill 863), laws of 1965, is amended to read:

20.415 HIGHER EDUCATIONAL AIDS, STATE COMMISSION FOR. There is appropriated from the general fund to the state commission of for higher educational aids for the following program:

(1) HIGHER EDUCATIONAL AIDS. (a) *General program operations.* On July 1, 1965, \$79,100 and on July 1, 1966, \$100,000 for its The amounts in the schedule for general program operations.

(d) (b) *Grants to students.* Biennial, beginning July 1, 1965, a sum sufficient but not to exceed \$2,400,000 the amounts in the schedule to carry out s. 39.027 (4m) providing grants to full time resident students enrolled in accredited nonprofit, post high school educational institutions in this state the purposes of s. 39.023 (4m).

SECTION 23. 20.415 of the statutes, as created by chapter 291 (Assembly Bill 797), laws of 1965, is renumbered 20.417 and amended to read:

20.417 HIGHER EDUCATION, CO-ORDINATING COMMITTEE FOR. ~~(1)~~ There is appropriated on July 1, 1965, \$145,000 and on July 1, 1966, \$154,000 from the general fund to the co-ordinating committee for higher education to carry out its functions under s. 39.024 for the following program:

(1) ADMINISTRATION. (a) General program operations. The amounts in the schedule to carry out its functions under s. 39.024.

SECTION 24. 20.460 (43) of the statutes, as amended by chapter 249 (Senate Bill 111), laws of 1965, is repealed.

SECTION 25. 20.530 (1) (f) 2 of the statutes, as amended by chapter 249 (Senate Bill 111), laws of 1965, is repealed and 20.530 (1) (a) 1. f of the statutes, as repealed and recreated by chapter 163 (Assembly Bill 903), laws of 1965, is reenacted.

SECTION 26. 20.530 (4) (f) of the statutes, as created by chapter 194 (Assembly Bill 955), laws of 1965, is renumbered 20.530 (1) (a) 6. f.

SECTION 27. 20.530 (30) of the statutes, as created by chapter 5 (Senate Bill 151), laws of 1965, is renumbered 20.530 (1) (a) 11.

SECTION 28. 20.535 (intro. par.) of the statutes, as repealed and recreated by chapter 163 (Assembly Bill 903), laws of 1965, is repealed.

SECTION 29. 20.535 (1) of the statutes, as repealed and recreated by chapter 163 (Assembly Bill 903), laws of 1965, is renumbered 20.650 (5).

SECTION 30. 20.542 (41) of the statutes, as created by chapter 137 (Senate Bill 16), laws of 1965, is renumbered 20.542 (1) (m) and amended to read:

20.542 (1) (m) Gifts and grants. All federal funds, gifts and grants moneys received by the committee under s. 46.52 (7) shall be paid within one week after receipt into the general fund and are appropriated therefrom to the mental health advisory committee as an additional appropriation for the purpose of carrying out its duties.

SECTION 31. 20.551 (4b) of the statutes, as created by chapter 259 (Senate Bill 48), laws of 1965, is repealed.

SECTION 32. 20.650 (2) (d) of the statutes, as repealed and recreated by chapter 163 (Assembly Bill 903), laws of 1965, is amended to read:

20.650 (2) (d) The amounts in the schedule for payment of ~~not to exceed \$22,000~~ \$29,000 for each co-operative educational service agency, for not to exceed 25 such agencies, for the current operational expenses of these agencies.

SECTION 33. 20.650 (21) of the statutes, as amended by chapter 289 (Assembly Bill 502), laws of 1965, is repealed.

SECTION 34. 20.670 (1) (d) of the statutes, as created by chapter 163 (Assembly Bill 903), laws of 1965, is amended to read:

20.670 (1) (d) Aids to county institutions. A sum sufficient for state aid to county ~~mental~~ institutions as provided in ss. 48.58 (2), 49.173, 51.08, 51.09, 51.12, 51.24, ~~51.25 (2)~~ 51.26 and 51.27 (2).

SECTION 35. 20.670 (3) (o) of the statutes, as created by chapter 163 (Assembly Bill 903), laws of 1965, is amended to read:

20.670 (3) (o) All federal moneys received for meeting costs of public assistance programs under ss. ~~49.046~~, 49.18, 49.19, 49.38, 49.40, 49.51 (3) (a) and 49.61 and ch. 163 to be expended for the purposes specified in the agreement between the state department of public welfare and the federal government.

SECTION 36. 20.700 (intro. par.) of the statutes, as repealed and recreated by chapter 163 (Assembly Bill 903), laws of 1965, is amended to read:

20.700 (intro. par.) There is appropriated to the ~~state Wisconsin~~ real estate ~~broker's board~~ *commission* for the following program:

SECTION 37. 20.703 (1) (g) (intro. par.) of the statutes, as repealed and recreated by chapter 163 (Assembly Bill 903), laws of 1965, is amended to read:

20.703 (1) (g) (intro. par.) All moneys received under ss. ~~139.50~~ ~~139.31~~ (2) ~~(b)~~ and ~~139.51~~ ~~139.33~~ (2) ~~(b)~~ for an outdoor recreation and resource development program. Of this amount the state recreation committee may allocate funds in general accordance with s. 15.60 to the programs specified in sub. (2) and ss. 20.280 (1), (2), (3) and (4), 20.420 (5), 20.670 (5), 20.705 (1) and 20.750 (1).

SECTION 38. 20.776 (1) of the statutes, as created by chapter 257 (Assembly Bill 158), laws of 1965, is renumbered 20.776 (2) (a).

SECTION 39. 20.820 (2) of the statutes, as amended by chapter 252 (Senate Bill 58), laws of 1965, is repealed.

SECTION 40. 20.830 (1) (x) of the statutes, as created by chapter 247 (Senate Bill 485), laws of 1965, is amended to read:

20.830 (1) (x) ~~The amounts in the schedule from~~ *All moneys received as trust fund income* under s. 36.03.

SECTION 41. 20.830 (9) (w) and (x) of the statutes, as created by chapter 247 (Senate Bill 485), laws of 1965, are amended to read:

20.830 (9) (w) ~~The amounts in the schedule~~ *All moneys available for university trust fund operations pursuant to s. 36.03.*

(x) ~~The amounts in the schedule from~~ *All moneys received as trust fund income* under s. 36.03.

SECTION 42. 20.840 (1) (b) of the statutes, as created by chapter 163 (Assembly Bill 903), laws of 1965, is renumbered 20.840 (2) (vn).

SECTION 43. 20.840 (2) of the statutes, as created by chapter 247 (Senate Bill 485), laws of 1965, is reenacted, and as so reenacted, 20.840 (2) (um) and (w) are amended to read:

20.840 (2) (um) A sum sufficient but not to exceed \$1,500,000 each year for payment of benefits to veterans and their dependents under ~~ch. 45 and for the hospitalization of veterans under s. 45.38 (1) ss. 45.351 and 45.396.~~

(w) A sum sufficient to pay veterans organizations for claims services as prescribed in s. ~~45.351~~ *45.353.*

SECTION 44. 20.840 (2) (y) of the statutes, as created by chapter 247 (Senate Bill 485), laws of 1965, is amended to read:

20.840 (2) (y) After deducting the appropriations made under pars. (u) to (xm) a sum sufficient for the payment of housing loans granted to veterans, ~~veterans nonprofit housing corporations and veterans nonprofit co-operative housing associations~~ and the payment of expense and other payments as a consequence of being mortgagee or owner under ~~ss. s. 45.352 and 45.353~~. All repayments of loans and payments of interest made on loans under ~~ss. s. 45.352 and 45.353~~ shall revert to the veterans trust fund.

SECTION 45. 20.840 (72), (76) and (81) of the statutes, as amended or created by chapter 295 (Assembly Bill 808), laws of 1965, are repealed.

SECTION 46. 20.850 (8) of the statutes, as created by chapter 287 (Assembly Bill 595), laws of 1965, is renumbered 20.850 (1) (bm) and amended to read:

20.850 (1) (bm) *Technical training scholarships for Indians. Annually, beginning July 1, 1965, \$20,000* The amounts in the schedule for technical training scholarships for Indians, established under as provided in s. 41.13 (10).

SECTION 47. 20.930 (1) (a) (line 1) of the statutes, as created by chapter 163 (Assembly Bill 903), laws of 1965, is renumbered 20.930 (1) (a) (line 22a) and amended by substituting "20.415" for the reference to "20.110" and the term "Higher educational aids" for the term "Academic facilities".

SECTION 48. 23.14 (12) of the statutes is amended to read:

23.14 (12) No portion of said pension fund shall either before or after its order of distribution by such board to such disabled or superannuated members of the conservation warden department or to the widow or guardian of ~~such minor child or~~ children of the deceased member of such department be held, seized, taken subject to, or detained or levied on by virtue of any attachment, execution, injunction, writ or other order or decree or any process or proceeding whatever, issued out of or by any court of this state for the payment or satisfaction in whole or in part of any debt, damages, claim or judgment against said member or his widow or the guardian of ~~such minor child or~~ children of any deceased member. An annuitant may, however, direct the fund to deduct premiums for group insurance carried under s. 66.919 and to pay such moneys ~~into the general fund~~ to the credit of s. 20.408 ~~(41)~~ (1) (u).

SECTION 49. 24.085 (1) of the statutes, as amended by chapter 163 (Assembly Bill 903), laws of 1965, is amended to read:

24.085 (1) The conservation commission may sell at public or private sale, lands and structures owned by the state under the jurisdiction of the conservation commission, when the conservation commission determines that the lands are no longer necessary for the state's use for conservation purposes. Upon request of the ~~state building commission~~ *Wisconsin federal surplus property development commission*, the conservation commission shall sell any lands thus requested within Bong air force base when owned by the conservation commission in outright fee to the ~~state building commission~~ *Wisconsin federal surplus property development commission* or its designee, at fair market value.

SECTION 50. 25.17 (1) (y) of the statutes is created to read:

25.17 (1) (y) Group life and health insurance fund (s. 66.919);

SECTION 51. 25.17 (3) (bg) (last sentence) of the statutes is amended to read:

25.17 (3) (bg) (last sentence) The department will have the right to repurchase veteran loans from the board at any time with veterans trust fund moneys *remaining* after the appropriations made by ~~ss. s.~~ 20.840 ~~(71), (73), (74), (75), (84), (85) and (86) (2).~~

SECTION 52. 25.235 of the statutes is amended to read:

25.235 All swamp and overflowed lands and moneys in lieu thereof received from the United States by virtue of the act of congress approved September 28, 1850, entitled "an act to enable the state of Arkansas and other states to reclaim the swamp lands within their limits;" and all moneys received as purchase money for such lands, including loans and investments and moneys due upon certificates of sale thereof; and all swamp lands and moneys in lieu thereof received subsequent to the enactment of chapter 537, laws of 1865, or which ~~shall~~ *are* hereafter be received, from the United States; and the proceeds of the sale of all lands conveyed to this state pursuant to the act of congress approved March 2, 1865, entitled "an act for the relief of purchasers and locators of swamp and overflowed lands," are trust lands and moneys, to be applied, exclusively, as provided in ~~sections 25.24 and~~ s. 25.25.

SECTION 53. 27.30 (5) (d) of the statutes, as amended by chapter 252 (Senate Bill 58), laws of 1965, is amended to read:

27.30 (5) (d) ~~It shall be the duty of~~ The proper officers of each county agricultural society, association or board entitled to state aid under this subsection, ~~to~~ *shall* submit to the department a complete accounting system for such society, association or board and no state aid shall be paid to such society, association or board until a satisfactory system of accounts has been approved by ~~said~~ *the* department, and installed according to its instructions. Such officers shall, within 120 days after any fair held by their organization, cause to be made and published *as* a class 1 notice, under ch. 985, in the county in which the fair is held, a financial statement showing the financial condition of the organization before and after the fair. Such financial statement shall include all receipts, disbursements, accounts receivable and accounts payable in connection with the operation of the fair as the department requires.

SECTION 54. The amendments made to 29.09 (7) by chapters 170 (Senate Bill 209) and 244 (Senate Bill 9), laws of 1965, were not repealed by chapter 245 (Senate Bill 263), laws of 1965. All amendments stand.

SECTION 55. 29.14 (2) of the statutes, as amended by chapter 170 (Senate Bill 209), laws of 1965, is amended to read:

29.14 (2) Any nonresident over the age of 16 years shall have the right to take, catch or kill fish, or fish for fish with hook and line or with rod and reel in the waters of this state, except in outlying waters, only if a license has been duly issued to him, subject to s. 29.09, by the state conservation commission and by the county clerk. The fee for each such license entitling the holder to take, catch or kill fish is \$6 and all such licenses shall be effective only from January 1 until the next succeeding December 31. A combination fishing license may be issued to a nonresident husband and wife, to be effective for a period of 15 days, for the sum of \$7. Upon payment of an additional fee of \$1 for each coupon, the original purchaser of such license shall be entitled to receive not more than 3 coupons entitling him to make not more than 3 separate shipments of game fish as provided in s. 29.47. The issuing agent shall enter the serial num-



ber of each coupon issued on the license. One coupon shall be attached to each shipment so made. The agent of any common carrier who accepts any such shipment without a coupon attached shall be fined not less than \$25 nor more than \$50. The commission may cause such licenses or coupons to be issued through agents for a compensation of ~~25~~ 30 cents for each such license and 10 cents for each coupon so issued; but no such compensation shall be paid to any of its regular deputies or other employees.

SECTION 56. 29.52 (7) of the statutes, as created by chapter 47 (Senate Bill 232), laws of 1965, is amended by substituting a reference to "sub. (5)" for the reference to "sub. (4)" in the 4th line.

SECTION 57. 30.501 (9) of the statutes, as created by chapter 212 (Assembly Bill 251), laws of 1965, is amended to read:

30.501 (9) This ~~Act shall apply~~ *section applies* to vessels manufactured after January 1, 1966.

SECTION 58. 39.024 (2) (e) of the statutes is created to read:

39.024 (2) (e) If the executive director or any professional staff of the co-ordinating committee for higher education are appointed from the faculty or staff of any of the higher education institutions participating in the co-ordinating committee, such institution shall grant the appointee a leave of absence for the duration of his service with the co-ordinating committee, and his tenure at the institution shall in no way be affected by the granting of such leave of absence.

SECTION 59. 39.06 (3a) (a) of the statutes, as amended by chapter 252 (Senate Bill 58), laws of 1965, is repealed.

SECTION 60. 41.21 (1) (b) 1 of the statutes is amended by substituting "40.77 (1) (am)" for the reference to "40.77 (2)".

SECTION 61. 41.60 (3) and 41.71 (1) of the statutes are amended by substituting "state board of vocational, technical and adult education" for "state board of vocational and adult education".

SECTION 62. 41.71 (9) of the statutes, as repealed and recreated by chapter 163 (Assembly Bill 903), laws of 1965, is amended to read:

41.71 (9) *The board shall* establish and maintain co-operative working relationships with all federal, state and local public agencies and private organizations and agencies providing services directly or indirectly related to vocational rehabilitation so as to assure maximum utilization on a co-ordinated basis of the services which such agencies offer for over-all vocational rehabilitation of handicapped persons.

SECTION 63. 42.52 of the statutes is amended to read:

42.52 The benefits payable to, or other right and interest of any member, beneficiary, or distributee of any estate under any provision of the state teachers retirement law shall be exempt from any tax levied by the state or any subdivision thereof, and exempt from levy and sale, garnishment, attachment, or any other process whatsoever, and shall be unassignable except as specifically provided herein. An annuitant may, however, direct the board to deduct premiums for group insurance carried under s. 66.919 and to pay such moneys ~~into the general fund~~ to the credit of s. 20.408 ~~(41)~~ (1) (u). The exemption from taxation contained herein shall not apply with respect to any tax on income.

SECTION 64. 43.10 of the statutes, as amended by chapter 163 (Assembly Bill 903), laws of 1965, is repealed and 43.10 of the statutes, as

repealed and recreated by chapter 150 (Senate Bill 529), laws of 1965, is reenacted.

SECTION 65. 43.24 (4) of the statutes is amended to read:

43.24 (4) During the last month of the annual school term in every school district coming under ~~the provisions of~~ the school library law, the teacher, principal or superintendent, ~~as the case may be,~~ shall set aside those books in the school ~~library or~~ libraries, which are in need of re-binding, and supply to the district clerk a list in duplicate of the titles of the books thus set aside, also a list of the approved bookbinding firms, together with such other readily obtainable information regarding the books set aside as may be called for by the state ~~or county~~ superintendent on blanks supplied for the purpose. Only those school library books shall be set aside for re-binding whose original costs, value as school library books, sanitary condition, and condition as to wear and tear and cleanliness are such as, in the judgment of the teacher, principal or superintendent, to justify re-binding.

SECTION 66. 45.365 (6) of the statutes is repealed.

SECTION 67. 49.18 (1) (a) of the statutes, as amended by chapter 138 (Assembly Bill 707), laws of 1965, is amended to read:

49.18 (1) (a) Any needy person who is blind shall receive aid from the county of his residence as provided in this section. The amount granted shall be determined on the basis of need taking into consideration all income and resources as well as ordinary and special expenses incidental to blindness, except that the first \$85 plus one-half of the excess over \$85 of payments made to or on behalf of any person for or with respect to any ~~money~~ month under Title I or II of the federal economic opportunity act of 1964 or such payment made to or in behalf of any person and any excess remaining after this exclusion shall be considered as income for any other individual only to the extent made available to or for the benefit of such other individual and except that as permitted or required for federal aid in making such determination of need, the first \$85 per month of earned income together with one-half of any earned income in excess of the first \$85 shall be disregarded in determining such amount. Any amount of earned income so disregarded in determining the amount of aid to the blind a recipient of such aid is eligible for, shall not be taken into consideration in determining the need of any other individual for aid to the blind, old-age assistance, aid to dependent children or aid to totally and permanently disabled persons. Under a plan approved by the department a recipient may during a period not in excess of 12 months accumulate additional amounts of other income and resources for the purpose of achieving self-support through self-activity as set out in the approved plan. The maximum aid per month shall not exceed \$75.

SECTION 68. The amendment of section 49.19 (5) of the statutes, by chapter 138 (Assembly Bill 707), laws of 1965, was not repealed by chapter 157 (Senate Bill 12), laws of 1965. Both amendments stand.

SECTION 69. 49.22 (1) (intro. par.) of the statutes, as amended by chapter 138 (Assembly Bill 707), laws of 1965, is amended to read:

49.22 (1) (intro. par.) Any needy person who complies with ss. 49.20 to 49.38 shall be entitled to financial assistance in old age. The amount granted shall be determined by a budget in which all income and resources, except that the first \$85 plus one-half of the excess over \$85 of payments made to or on behalf of any person for or with respect to any month under Title I or II of the federal *economic opportunity* ~~poverty~~ act of 1964 or

such payment made to or in behalf of any person and any excess remaining after this exclusion shall be considered as income for any other individual only to the extent made available to or for the benefit of such other individual and except as provided by s. 49.18 (1) (a), as well as expenses shall be considered and the aid per month shall not exceed \$75, the payment of the aid to be made monthly, except that the director of the county agency may, for the purpose of protecting the public, direct that the monthly allowance be paid in 2 or more instalments. Old-age assistance may be granted to a person only if:

SECTION 70. 59.99 (6) of the statutes, as amended by chapter 252 (Senate Bill 58), laws of 1965, is amended to read:

59.99 (6) The board of adjustment shall fix a reasonable time for the hearing of the appeal, and publish a class 2 notice thereof, under ch. 985, as well as give due notice to the parties in interest, and decide the same within a reasonable time. Upon the hearing any party may appear in person or by agent or by attorney.

SECTION 71. 62.24 (1) (a) of the statutes, as amended by chapter 249 (Senate Bill 111), laws of 1965, is repealed. 62.24 (1) (a) of the statutes, as amended by chapter 161 (Assembly Bill 249), laws of 1965, is reenacted.

SECTION 72. 66.36 (1) of the statutes is amended to read:

66.36 (1) Any city of the 1st and 2nd class as defined by s. 62.05 (1) may apply for and accept state aids for the acquisition of recreational lands and rights in lands for the development of its metropolitan area park system under ~~ss. 20.705 (44) and~~ s. 109.05 (3).

SECTION 73. The amendment made to section 66.431 (6) (b) 3 of the statutes, by chapter 220 (Senate Bill 316), laws of 1965, was not repealed by chapter 252 (Senate Bill 58), laws of 1965. Both amendments stand.

SECTION 74. The amendment of section 66.906 (2) (a) 1 of the statutes, by chapter 33 (Senate Bill 62), laws of 1965, was not repealed by ch. 251 (Senate Bill 471), laws of 1965. Both amendments stand.

SECTION 75. 66.918 (1) (a) of the statutes is amended to read:

66.918 (1) (a) None of the moneys mentioned in ss. 66.90 to 66.918 shall be assignable, either in law or equity, or be subject to execution, levy, attachment, garnishment or other legal process. An annuitant may, however, direct the fund to deduct premiums for group insurance carried under s. 66.919 and to pay such moneys into the general fund to the credit of s. 20.408 ~~(41) (1) (u)~~.

SECTION 76. 70.11 (21) (c) of the statutes is amended to read:

70.11 (21) (c) In computing operating costs, taxpayers that have elected amortization deduction under either s. 71.04 (2b) or ~~71.05 (2b)~~ shall claim such accelerated amortization as a deduction in the annual operating statement required to be filed under par. (b). Once a property, covered by this subsection, has been fully amortized or depreciated and amortized no further deduction shall be allowed under this subsection in the computation of gain or loss from operating such pollution abatement properties. No loss from operation in a previous year shall be allowed under this subsection as a carry-forward adjustment to the current year's operating statement required hereunder.

SECTION 77. 70.11 (24) (f) of the statutes, as amended by chapter 249 (Senate Bill 111), laws of 1965, is repealed.

SECTION 78. 70.421 (3) of the statutes is amended by striking out the words "and 71.05 (4)".

SECTION 79. 70.61 of the statutes is amended to read:

70.61 The county equalization committee shall, after its meeting with the supervisor of assessments as provided in s. 73.05, submit its recommendations with respect to the determination of valuation figures required for the apportionment of taxes by the county clerk, together with such supporting data as it deems proper, to the county board of supervisors. The ~~county board of supervisors~~ shall carefully examine such recommended valuation figures and determine and assess the value of all taxable property ~~(a)~~ in each town, city and village within the county, ~~(b)~~ in the area under the jurisdiction of the county superintendent of schools, and in the metropolitan drainage area as created by s. 59.96. The values so determined shall be the full values according to the best judgment of the ~~county board~~ and shall be known thereafter as the valuations determined by the county board of supervisors pursuant to s. 70.61.

SECTION 80. 71.04 (intro. par.) of the statutes is amended by striking out the words "Except as provided in s. 71.047".

SECTION 81. 71.05 (17) (d) 5 and 6 of the statutes, as amended by chapter 218 (Senate Bill 504), laws of 1965, are repealed.

SECTION 82. 71.07 (1) of the statutes, as amended by chapter 163 (Assembly Bill 903), laws of 1965, is amended by substituting "71.07 (7)" for the reference to "71.08".

SECTION 83. 71.09 (2b) (intro. par.), (b) and (c) of the statutes, as amended by chapter 249 (Senate Bill 111), laws of 1965, are repealed and 71.09 (3), as renumbered from 71.09 (2b) and amended by chapter 163 (Assembly Bill 903), laws of 1965, is reenacted.

SECTION 84. 71.09 (7) (a) 1 of the statutes, as repealed and recreated by chapter 580, laws of 1963, is amended to read:

71.09 (7) (a) 1. "Income" means the sum of adjusted gross income as defined in s. ~~71.05 (13a)~~ ~~(e)~~ 71.02 (2) (e), net income from sources outside the state, alimony, support money, cash public assistance and relief, the gross amount of any pension or annuity (including railroad retirement benefits, all payments received under the federal social security act, and veterans disability pensions), nontaxable interest received from the federal government or any of its instrumentalities, workman's compensation and the gross amount of "loss of time" insurance. It does not include gifts from nongovernmental sources, or surplus food or other relief in kind supplied by a governmental agency.

SECTION 85. 71.10 (5) (b) of the statutes, as repealed and recreated by chapter 163 (Assembly Bill 903), laws of 1965, is reenacted.

SECTION 86. 71.10 (6) of the statutes, as renumbered from 71.10 (5) (b) by chapter 249 (Senate Bill 111), laws of 1965, is repealed, and 71.10 (6), as created by chapter 163 (Assembly Bill 903), laws of 1965, is reenacted.

SECTION 87. 71.10 (9) (a) of the statutes, as amended by section 74gf of chapter 163 (Assembly Bill 903), laws of 1965, is repealed.

SECTION 88. 71.11 (40) of the statutes, as amended by chapter 249 (Senate Bill 111), laws of 1965, is repealed and 71.11 (40) of the statutes, as amended by chapter 163 (Assembly Bill 903), laws of 1965, is reenacted.

SECTION 89. The amendment of 71.13 (1) of the statutes, by chapter 163 (Assembly Bill 903), laws of 1965, was not repealed by chapter 249 (Senate Bill 111), laws of 1965. Both amendments stand.

SECTION 90. The amendments made to 71.14 (1) (c) 1 and (2a) (c), by chapter 114 (Senate Bill 304), laws of 1965, were not repealed by chapter 163 (Assembly Bill 903), laws of 1965. All amendments stand.

SECTION 91. 71.15 (12) of the statutes is amended to read:

71.15 (12) The repeal and recreation of s. 71.10 (9) (a) and the repeal of s. 71.10 (9) (b), (c) and (cm) shall apply with respect to calendar or fiscal income years beginning after July 31, 1963. The repeal of s. 71.04 (13) (a) and (b) and (14) (a) and (b), and the amendment to s. 71.04 (9) (b) and the creation of 71.047 shall first apply to income of the calendar year 1963 or corresponding fiscal years.

SECTION 92. 71.19 (1) (j) of the statutes is amended by striking out the words "pursuant to s. 71.01 (3) (e)".

SECTION 93. 73.03 (7) of the statutes, as created by chapter 163 (Assembly Bill 903), laws of 1965, is renumbered 73.02 (7).

SECTION 94. 80.13 (2) of the statutes, as amended by chapter 252 (Senate Bill 58), laws of 1965, is amended to read:

80.13 (2) Notice of the time and place of meeting shall be served as required by s. 80.05 and published as a class 2 notice, under ch. 985, and proof thereof made and filed as required by s. 80.05.

SECTION 95. 97.023 (1) of the statutes is amended to read:

97.023 (1) Whoever practices promoting or opposing the making of regulations under s. 97.022 before the department, its officers, employes or the advisory committee appointed under s. 93.07 (20) or before any member of said committee, shall be deemed a lobbyist and subject to the provision of s. 13.66 (1) and (2). The secretary of state shall prepare a special docket file for registration of persons so practicing which shall substantially conform to s. 13.65, so far as applicable. The provisions of Sections 13.63 to 13.65, 13.66 (1) and (2), 13.67 to 13.69 and 13.70 (1) shall, so far as applicable and consistent with this section, apply to persons so practicing. For the purposes of this section the reports and statements required by ss. 13.67 and 13.68 shall be made within 10 days after the end of each calendar half year and shall cover the preceding half-year period.

SECTION 96. 101.37 (3) of the statutes is amended to read:

101.37 (3) All funds made available to this state under said act shall, upon receipt thereof, be paid into the unemployment administration fund under s. 20.440 (73) and (74), and are appropriated therefrom to the industrial commission to be expended as required by the act of congress making such funds available and the rules and regulations issued thereunder created by s. 108.20.

SECTION 97. 103.24 (2) of the statutes is amended by substituting "40.77 (1) (am)" for the reference to "40.77 (2)".

SECTION 98. 103.68 (1) of the statutes is amended by substituting "40.77 (1) (am)" for the reference to "40.77 (2)".

SECTION 99. 108.20 (2) of the statutes is amended to read:

108.20 (2) All amounts received by the commission for such fund shall be paid over to the state treasurer and credited to the unemployment administration fund, ~~and, as provided in s. 20.440 (73) and (74) of the statutes, are appropriated to the commission for the administration of this chapter and the Wisconsin state employment service.~~

SECTION 100. 114.20 (12) of the statutes is amended to read:

114.20 (12) A refund may be made for aircraft registration fees paid in error as determined by the commission. A refund may be made for any portion of the overpayment of aircraft registration fee as determined by the commission. Refunds made under this section shall be paid out of the moneys received under this section; ~~such payments to be made and deducted from the appropriation made by s. 20.130 (41).~~

SECTION 101. 128.14 (1) of the statutes, as amended by chapter 252 (Senate Bill 58), laws of 1965, is amended to read:

128.14 (1) The court shall require creditors to file their verified claims within 3 months from the date of the filing of an assignment or the appointment of a receiver and may enjoin proceedings by any other creditor against the insolvent. The receiver or assignee shall be required to give notice promptly to *the Wisconsin department of taxation and to all creditors of the pendency of the proceeding, the injunction against other actions and the time within which creditors are required to file claims.* The notice shall be mailed to *the department of taxation and to each creditor at his last known address and shall be published in the county as a class 3 notice, under ch. 985.*

SECTION 102. The amendment made to 136.04 (2) (a) of the statutes, by chapter 123 (Assembly Bill 287), laws of 1965, was not repealed by chapter 249 (Senate Bill 111), laws of 1965. Both amendments stand.

SECTION 103. 139.40 (4) of the statutes, as created by chapter 67 (Senate Bill 112), laws of 1965, is amended to read:

139.40 (4) If personal property other than cigarettes is so seized the commissioner shall advertise the same for sale ~~in the official state paper once a week for 2 weeks by publication of a class 2 notice under ch. 985.~~ If no claimant, either of lien or ownership, has notified the commissioner within 10 days after last ~~publication~~ *insertion* of such ~~advertisement notice,~~ the property shall be sold. If such sale is not practical the property may be destroyed. If a claimant of a lien or ownership notifies the commissioner within the prescribed time, the commissioner may apply to a court of record in the county where the property was seized for an order directing disposition of said property or the proceeds thereof. If a sale of such seized property is ordered, all liens, if any, may be transferred from the property to the proceeds of such sale. Neither the property seized nor the proceeds from the sale thereof shall be turned over to any claimant of lien or ownership unless such claimant first establishes that the property was not used in connection with any violation of ss. 139.30 to 139.44 or that, if so used, it was done without his knowledge or consent and without his knowledge of such facts as should have given him reason to believe it would be put to such use. If no claim of lien or ownership is so established the property may be ordered destroyed. In case of sale, the

net proceeds after deducting costs, expenses and established claims shall be paid into the state treasury.

SECTION 104. 139.50 (33) and (35) of the statutes, as amended by chapter 252 (Senate Bill 58), laws of 1965, are repealed.

SECTION 105. 141.06 (2) of the statutes is amended to read:

141.06 (2) The work of the county nurse shall be directed by a county health committee composed either of the chairman of the county board, ~~the county superintendent of schools,~~ a woman appointed by the county board, the judge of the juvenile court and the district health officer or county physician for that county, or of the district health officer and not less than 5 members of the county board appointed by the chairman thereof.

SECTION 106. 146.18 (3) of the statutes is amended to read:

146.18 (3) The state board of health shall use sufficient funds from ~~the appropriations~~ *appropriation* now made by s. 20.410 ~~(1), (2), (3)~~ and ~~(47) (1) (a)~~ for the promotion of the welfare and hygiene of maternity and infancy to match the funds received by the state from the United States under the provisions of such act of congress.

SECTION 107. 176.05 (1a) (am) of the statutes is created to read:

176.05 (1a) (am) Paragraph (a) took effect October 3, 1963. Any licenses or permits issued prior to that date which would, after that date, be in violation of par. (a) shall nevertheless remain valid and the licensing authority shall not fail to issue licenses or permits (renewals) to persons holding such licenses or permits on that date unless for other cause shown.

SECTION 108. 182.60 (10) (a) and (f) of the statutes, as amended by chapter 163 (Assembly Bill 903), laws of 1965, are amended by substituting "15.995" for the reference to "13.351 (15)".

SECTION 109. 196.80 (4) (a), (b) and (g) of the statutes, as amended by chapter 252 (Senate Bill 58), laws of 1965, are repealed.

SECTION 110. 221.01 (3) of the statutes, as amended by chapter 275 (Senate Bill 366), laws of 1965, is repealed and 221.01 (3) of the statutes, as amended by chapter 252 (Senate Bill 58), laws of 1965, is reenacted.

SECTION 111. 221.01 (12) (d) 1 of the statutes, as created by chapter 275 (Senate Bill 366), laws of 1965, is amended by striking out the words "under s. 71.032".

SECTION 112. 221.07 of the statutes, as amended by chapter 275 (Senate Bill 366), laws of 1965, is repealed and 221.07 of the statutes, as amended by chapter 252 (Senate Bill 58), laws of 1965, is reenacted.

SECTION 113. 223.055 (6) of the statutes is amended to read:

223.055 (6) No common trust fund established pursuant to this section shall be subject to taxation as a corporation, association, partnership or individual, but it shall be a fiduciary within ~~the provisions of s. 71.08 (8), (9) and (10).~~ All income of such trust and all capital gains and losses shall be income received or loss realized, ~~as the case may be,~~ to the fiduciary account holding a participation in such common trust fund in accordance with its participation.

SECTION 114. 231.51 of the statutes, as created by chapter 65 (Senate Bill 72), laws of 1965, is renumbered 231.55.

SECTION 115. 253.06 of the statutes is amended to read:

253.06 The term of office of every elected county judge is 6 years, and until his successor is elected and qualifies, which term commences with the first Monday in January next succeeding his election, except that the ~~judges~~ judge elected for the Rock county court, branch No. 3, and for the ~~Brown county court, branch No. 2, at the spring, 1966, election shall serve for terms~~ a term commencing the first Monday in May 1966 and ending the first Monday in January 1972; the judge elected for the ~~Rock county court, branch No. 2, at the April 1965 election shall serve for a term commencing on the last Monday in June 1965, and ending the first Monday in January 1971;~~ the judge elected for the Douglas county court, branch No. 2, at the spring, 1965, election shall serve for a term commencing the first Monday in May 1965, and ending the first Monday in January 1971; the judges elected for the ~~Outagamie county court, branch No. 2, and the Douglas county court, branch No. 3, at the spring, 1967, election shall serve for terms commencing May 1, 1967 and ending the first Monday in January 1973,~~ the judge elected for the Milwaukee county court, branch No. 11, at the spring, 1967, election shall serve for a term beginning the first Monday in June 1967, and ending the first Monday in January 1973; the judge elected for the Fond du Lac county court, branch No. 2, at the spring, 1964, election shall serve for a term beginning May 1, 1964, and ending the first Monday in January 1970; the judge elected for the ~~Sheboygan county court branch No. 2, at the spring, 1962, election shall serve for a term beginning the first Monday in June 1962, and ending the first Monday in January 1968;~~ the judge elected for the Ozaukee county court branch No. 2, in the spring, 1962, election shall serve for a term commencing the first Monday in July 1962 and ending the first Monday in January, 1968; and the judge elected for the Dane county court, branch No. 3, at the spring, 1961, election shall serve for a term beginning the first Monday in July 1961 and ending the first Monday in January 1967. The judges of the 2nd branch of county court in La Crosse county and the 3rd branch of county court in Brown county shall be elected at the spring, 1962, election for a term beginning the first Monday in May, 1962 and ending the first Monday in January 1968. The judges of the 2nd branch of county court in Columbia and Sauk counties, of the 3rd branch of county court in Fond du Lac county, and of the 4th branch of county court in Rock county shall be elected at the spring, 1962, election for a term beginning the first Monday in July, 1962 and ending the first Monday in January 1968. The judge of the 3rd branch of county court in Winnebago county shall be elected at the spring, 1962, election for a term beginning the first Monday in May, 1962 and ending the first Monday in January, 1968.

SECTION 116. 253.34 (1) (a) of the statutes, as repealed and recreated by chapter 108 (Senate Bill 168), laws of 1965, is amended to read:

253.34 (1) (a) For filing a petition whereby any proceeding in estates of deceased persons is commenced, when the gross estate or value of the property is \$1,000 or less, no fee; when the gross estate is more than \$1,000 and less than \$10,000, a fee of \$3; when the gross estate is \$10,000 or more and less than \$25,000, a fee of \$6; when the gross estate is \$25,000 or more and less than \$50,000, a fee of \$25; when the gross estate is \$50,000 or more and less than \$75,000, a fee of \$50; when the gross estate is \$75,000 or more and less than \$100,000, a fee of \$75; when



the gross estate is \$100,000 or more *and less than \$200,000*, a fee of \$100; and for each succeeding \$100,000 or fraction thereof, ~~a~~ *an additional* fee of \$100. Such fees shall be paid at the time of the filing of the inventory, or other documents, setting forth the value of the estate in such proceedings. The fees fixed in this paragraph shall also be paid in survivorship proceedings and in such survivorship proceedings the value shall be based on the value of the property passing to the survivors.

SECTION 117. The amendment of section 349.08 (6) (b) of the statutes, by chapter 196 (Assembly Bill 405), laws of 1965, was not repealed by chapter 227 (Assembly Bill 196), laws of 1965. Both amendments stand.

SECTION 118. 943.06 of the statutes, as created by chapter 180 (Assembly Bill 114), laws of 1965, is renumbered 947.015.

SECTION 119. The reference to "985.02 (3)" in section 985.05 (1) of the statutes, as amended by chapter 252 (Senate Bill 58), laws of 1965, is changed to read "985.02 (2)".

SECTION 120. Wherever in the following sections of the statutes, as repealed and recreated or amended by chapter 163 (Assembly Bill 908), laws of 1965, the words "state board of vocational and adult education" appear the words "state board of vocational, technical and adult education" are substituted: 20.650 (2) (v), 20.850 (intro. par.) and 20.982.

SECTION 121. In the sections listed in Column "A" below, the cross references to the sections in column "B" are changed as shown in column "C":

| A<br>Statute sections                  | B<br>Old cross references | C<br>New cross references                  |
|--|---------------------------|--|
| 12.25 (2)                              | 20.180 (3)                | 20.180                                     |
| 13.057 (1)                             | 20.530 (1) (c)            | 20.530 (1) (a) 1. e.                       |
| 13.351 (2) (d)                         | 20.830 (49)               | 20.830 (1) (j)                             |
| 13.40 (8) (d)                          | 20.530 (20)               | 20.530 (2) (a)                             |
| 14.13 (2)                              | 20.180 (2)                | 20.180                                     |
| 14.53 (5m)                             | 20.180 (3)                | 20.180 (1) (e)                             |
| 14.72 (1)                              | 20.385 (1)                | 20.385 (1) (a)                             |
| 14.75 (4) (intro)                      | 20.470 (1)                | 20.470                                     |
| 14.755 (intro)                         | 20.470 (1)                | 20.470                                     |
| 15.94 (6a)                             | 20.275 (1)                | 20.275 (1) (a)                             |
| 15.94 (6a)                             | 20.275 (70)               | 20.275 (1) (u)                             |
| 15.96 (11)                             | 20.822 (71)               | 20.822                                     |
| 16.08 (2) (c)                          | 20.430 (41)               | 20.430 (1) (g)                             |
| 17.16 (9)                              | 20.360 (1)                | 20.360                                     |
| 20.385 (9) (a) (as ren. by Ch. 163)    | 20.385 (1), (2), (3)      | 20.385 (1) and (2)                         |
| 20.385 (9) (c) 1. (as ren. by Ch. 163) | 20.280 (72)               | 20.280 (2)                                 |
| 20.385 (9) (c) 1. (as ren. by Ch. 163) | 20.410 (21), (22)         | 20.410 (1) (c) and (d)                     |
| 20.385 (9) (c) 1. (as ren. by Ch. 163) | 20.650 (11) to (15)       | 20.650 (2) (b), (bm), (c), (e) and (3) (e) |
| 20.385 (9) (c) 1. (as ren. by Ch. 163) | 20.670 (11) to (23)       | 20.670 (1) (d), (3) (a), (d) and (e)       |
| 20.550 (30) (b)                        | 20.280 (70)               | 20.280 (9) (ym)                            |
| 20.550 (71)                            | 20.840 (61)               | 20.840 (1) (m)                             |
| 20.930 (1) (a)                         | 20.130 (41)               | 20.130                                     |
| 20.930 (1) (a)                         | 20.180 (1)                | 20.180                                     |
| 20.930 (1) (a) (twice)                 | 20.200 (41)               | 20.200                                     |
| 20.930 (1) (a) (4 times)               | 20.260 (1)                | 20.260                                     |
| 20.930 (1) (a) (twice)                 | 20.265 (1)                | 20.260                                     |
| 20.930 (1) (a)                         | 20.280 (75)               | 20.280                                     |
| 20.930 (1) (a)                         | 20.290 (1)                | 20.290                                     |
| 20.930 (1) (a)                         | 20.360 (1)                | 20.360                                     |
| 20.930 (1) (a)                         | 20.400 (41)               | 20.400                                     |

| A<br>Statute sections                 | B<br>Old cross references | C<br>New cross references                     |
|---------------------------------------|---------------------------|---|
| 20.930 (1) (a) (twice)                | 20.440 (1)                | 20.440  |
| 20.930 (1) (a)                        | 20.460 (1)                | 20.460  |
| 20.930 (1) (a)                        | 20.480 (1)                | 20.480  |
| 20.930 (1) (a)                        | 20.530 (24)               | 20.530  |
| 20.930 (1) (a)                        | 20.530 (26)               | 20.530  |
| 20.930 (1) (a)                        | 20.560 (71)               | 20.560  |
| 20.930 (1) (a)                        | 20.570 (1)                | 20.570  |
| 20.930 (1) (a)                        | 20.650 (1)                | 20.650  |
| 20.930 (1) (a) (twice)                | 20.660 (1)                | 20.660  |
| 20.930 (1) (a)                        | 20.705 (1)                | 20.705  |
| 20.930 (1) (a)                        | 20.720 (41)               | 20.720  |
| 20.930 (1) (a) (twice)                | 20.730 (1)                | 20.730  |
| 20.930 (1) (a)                        | 20.740 (1)                | 20.740  |
| 20.930 (1) (a) (7 times)              | 20.780 (1)                | 20.780  |
| 20.930 (1) (a)                        | 20.790 (1)                | 20.790  |
| 20.930 (1) (a)                        | 20.800 (1)                | 20.800  |
| 20.930 (1) (a)                        | 20.810 (71)               | 20.810  |
| 20.930 (1) (a) (twice)                | 20.820 (1)                | 20.820  |
| 20.930 (1) (a) (twice)                | 20.840 (71)               | 20.840  |
| 20.930 (1) (a) (twice)                | 20.850 (1)                | 20.850  |
| 20.930 (1) (a)                        | 20.870 (1)                | 20.870  |
| 20.930 (1) (a)                        | 20.890 (71)               | 20.890  |
| 20.950                                | 20.002 (3) to (10)        | 20.002  |
| 20.979 (2) (a)                        | 20.650                    | 20.650 (3)                                    |
| 20.979 (2) (a)                        | 20.670                    | 20.670 (9)                                    |
| 20.979 (2) (a)                        | 20.760                    | 20.760 (1)                                    |
| 20.979 (2) (a)                        | 20.840                    | 20.840 (1)                                    |
| 20.979 (2) (c)                        | 20.670 (44)               | 20.670 (2) (km)                               |
| 21.025 (3)                            | 20.570 (1)                | 20.570 (1) (a)                                |
| 21.13                                 | 20.180 (2)                | 20.180  |
| 21.56 (2) (c)                         | 20.570 (41)               | 20.570 (1) (g)                                |
| 22.01 (11) (f)                        | 20.270 (1)                | 20.270 (1) (a)                                |
| 24.04 (2)                             | 20.500 (1)                | 20.500 (1) (a)                                |
| 25.17 (3) (bf) (twice)                | 20.670 (47)               | 20.670 (4)                                    |
| 25.17 (3) (bg) (3rd sentence) (twice) | 20.840 (73)               | 20.840 (2) (x)                                |
| 25.17 (3) (bg)                        | 20.840 (81)               | 20.840 (2) (y)                                |
| 25.17 (9)                             | 20.480 (1)                | 20.480  |
| 27.30 (5) (intro)                     | 20.365 (3)                | 20.365 (2)                                    |
| 28.11 (6) (b) 3.                      | 20.280 (72)               | 20.280 (2)                                    |
| 28.11 (8) (a)                         | 20.280 (72)               | 20.280 (2)                                    |
| 28.11 (8) (a)                         | 20.551 (1e)               | 20.280 (2) (b)                                |
| 28.11 (8) (b) 1.                      | 20.280 (72)               | 20.280 (2)                                    |
| 28.11 (8) (b) 2.                      | 20.280 (72)               | 20.280 (2)                                    |
| 28.11 (9) (a)                         | 20.280 (72)               | 20.280 (2)                                    |
| 29.595 (2) (c)                        | 20.280 (71)               | 20.280 (1)                                    |
| 29.595 (3)                            | 20.280 (71)               | 20.280 (1)                                    |
| 30.24 (2) (cr. Ch. 298)               | 20.280 (78m)              | 20.280 (3) (x) and (y)                        |
| 34.03 (1) (g)                         | 20.200 (72)               | 20.200 (2) (u)                                |
| 34.04 (4)                             | 20.550 (7)                | 20.200 (2) (a)                                |
| 34.08 (1) (a)                         | 20.200 (72)               | 20.200 (2) (u)                                |
| 35.75 (3)                             | 20.780 (1)                | 20.780  |
| 36.06 (7)                             | 20.830 (50)               | 20.830 (2) (n)                                |
| 36.06 (9) (b)                         | 20.830 (47)               | 20.830 (1) (i)                                |
| 36.06 (9) (b)                         | 20.830 (48)               | 20.830 (1) (m) and (r)                        |
| 36.215 (2)                            | 20.830 (1)                | 20.830 (1) (a)                                |
| 36.227 (6) (b)                        | 20.830 (10)               | 20.830 (1) (a)                                |
| 36.34 (1a)                            | 20.830 (49)               | 20.830 (1) (j)                                |
| 38.24 (11) (f) 3.                     | 20.551 (16)               | 20.548 (1) (a)                                |
| 39.024 (4) (g) (cr. Ch. 259)          | 20.551 (4b)               | 20.240 (2) (c)                                |
| 40.56 (5)                             | 20.650 (12)               | 20.650 (2) (bm)                               |
| 40.655 (1) (a)                        | 20.650 (13)               | 20.650 (2) (b)                                |
| 40.655 (1) (b)                        | 20.650 (14)               | 20.650 (2) (c)                                |
| 40.655 (1) (c)                        | 20.650 (16)               | 20.650 (2) (cm)                               |
| 40.655 (1) (d)                        | 20.650 (17a)              | 20.650 (3) (f)                                |
| 40.71 (1)                             | 20.650 (13)               | 20.650 (2) (b)                                |
| 40.71 (8)                             | 20.650 (11) to (15)       | 20.650 (2) (b), (bm),<br>(c), (e) and (3) (e) |
| 41.03 (1) (b)                         | 20.650 (20)               | 20.650 (3) (d)                                |
| 41.03 (2)                             | 20.650 (20)               | 20.650 (3) (d)                                |

| A<br>Statute sections                     | B<br>Old cross references  | C<br>New cross references              |
|---|----------------------------|--|
| 41.19 (8) (as ren. by Ch. 292)            | 20.850 (11)                | 20.850 (1) (d)                         |
| 41.215                                    | 20.850 (44)                | 20.850 (1) (m)                         |
| 41.44 (3)                                 | 20.650 (18)                | 20.650 (4) (b)                         |
| 41.57 (4) (twice)                         | 20.650 (12)                | 20.650 (2) (bm)                        |
| 41.73 (3)                                 | 20.650 (31)                | 20.650 (3) (a)                         |
| 41.73 (4)                                 | 20.650 (31)                | 20.650 (3) (a)                         |
| 41.73 (5)                                 | 20.650 (31)                | 20.650 (3) (a)                         |
| 41.73 (7)                                 | 20.650 (31)                | 20.650 (3) (a)                         |
| 41.77                                     | 20.650 (5)                 | 20.650 (3) (b)                         |
| 42.23                                     | 20.810 (73)                | 20.810 (1) (v)                         |
| 42.241 (12a) (b)                          | 20.551 (11c), (11d), (11e) | 42.241 (15)                            |
| 42.65                                     | 20.890 (1)                 | 20.890 (1) (a)                         |
| 45.35 (18) (a)                            | 20.840 (83)                | 20.840 (2) (z)                         |
| 45.35 (18) (b)                            | 20.840 (83)                | 20.840 (2) (z)                         |
| 45.351 (cr. Ch. 295)                      | 20.840 (72)                | 20.840 (2) (um)                        |
| 45.352 (2) (a)                            | 20.840 (81)                | 20.840 (2) (y)                         |
| 45.352 (7)                                | 20.840 (81)                | 20.840 (2) (y)                         |
| 45.352 (11) (d)                           | 20.840 (81)                | 20.840 (2) (y)                         |
| 45.365 (2a)                               | 20.840 (62)                | 20.840 (1) (h)                         |
| 45.365 (2b)                               | 20.840 (62)                | 20.840 (1) (h)                         |
| 45.365 (4) (b)                            | 20.840 (61)                | 20.840 (1) (m)                         |
| 45.37 (15) (a)                            | 20.840 (81)                | 20.840 (1) (a)                         |
| 45.37 (15) (b)                            | 20.840 (81)                | 20.840 (1) (a)                         |
| 45.396 (cr. by Ch. 293)                   | 20.840 (72)                | 20.840 (2) (um)                        |
| 46.03 (2a)                                | 20.670 (46)                | 20.670 (9) (i)                         |
| 46.07 (2) (c)                             | 20.670 (44)                | 20.670 (2) (km)                        |
| 46.105                                    | 20.670 (41)                | 20.670 (8) (k)                         |
| 46.105                                    | 20.830 (61)                | 20.830 (3) (g)                         |
| 48.58 (2)                                 | 20.670 (22)                | 20.670 (1) (d)                         |
| 49.04 (1)                                 | 20.670 (19)                | 20.670 (3) (e)                         |
| 49.04 (3)                                 | 20.670 (19)                | 20.670 (3) (e)                         |
| 49.046 (3 times)                          | 20.670 (16)                | 20.670 (3) (e)                         |
| 49.046 (3 times)                          | 20.670 (56)                | 20.670 (3) (o)                         |
| 49.18 (10)                                | 20.670 (12)                | 20.670 (3) (d)                         |
| 49.18 (10)                                | 20.670 (52)                | 20.670 (3) (o)                         |
| 49.19 (10)                                | 20.670 (11)                | 20.670 (3) (d)                         |
| 49.19 (10)                                | 20.670 (51)                | 20.670 (3) (o)                         |
| 49.38 (2)                                 | 20.670 (13)                | 20.670 (3) (d)                         |
| 49.39                                     | 20.670 (18)                | 20.670 (3) (d)                         |
| 49.39                                     | 20.670 (21)                | 20.670 (3) (d)                         |
| 49.395                                    | 20.670 (21)                | 20.670 (3) (d)                         |
| 49.42 (1)                                 | 20.670 (47)                | 20.670 (4)                             |
| 49.51 (3) (a)                             | 20.670 (54)                | 20.670 (3) (o)                         |
| 49.51 (3) (b)                             | 20.670 (14)                | 20.670 (3) (d)                         |
| 49.61 (9)                                 | 20.670 (15)                | 20.670 (3) (d)                         |
| 49.61 (9)                                 | 20.670 (55)                | 20.670 (3) (o)                         |
| 51.39 (cr. by Ch. 176)                    | 20.410 (53), (53m)         | 20.410 (1) (s) and (t)                 |
| 66.902 (6) (b) 3.                         | 20.890 (5)                 | 20.890 (1) (b)                         |
| 66.9025 (9)                               | 20.570 (4)                 | 20.570 (1) (d)                         |
| 66.914 (4)                                | 20.890 (71)                | 20.890 (1) (u)                         |
| 66.917 (1b) (twice)                       | 20.890 (71)                | 20.890 (1) (u)                         |
| 66.919 (3) (b)                            | 20.408 (42) (b)            | 20.408 (9)                             |
| 66.919 (8) (a)                            | 20.408 (41)                | 20.408 (1) (u)                         |
| 66.919 (8) (d)                            | 20.550 (32)                | 20.408                                 |
| 66.919 (9) (b)                            | 20.550 (32)                | 20.408                                 |
| 66.919 (25) (b) (twice)                   | 20.408 (1)                 | 20.408 (1) (a)                         |
| 66.99 (8a) (twice)                        | 20.640 (1)                 | 20.640                                 |
| 70.113                                    | 20.280 (78) (e)            | 20.280 (9) (vc)                        |
| 70.113                                    | 20.280 (81), (82)          | 20.280 (1) (m), (2) (m)<br>and (3) (m) |
| 70.118 (1)                                | 20.280 (71) to (75)        | 20.280                                 |
| 70.118 (2)                                | 20.280 (71) to (75)        | 20.280                                 |
| 70.58 (3)                                 | 20.280 (72)                | 20.280 (2)                             |
| 70.58 (3)                                 | 20.280 (81)                | 20.280 (2)                             |
| 71.09 (7) (o) (See Ch. 580, Laws<br>1963) | 20.800 (10)                | 20.800 (3)                             |
| 76.28 (6)                                 | 20.130 (41)                | 20.130                                 |
| 76.48 (4)                                 | 20.800 (1)                 | 20.800                                 |
| 77.05 (2)                                 | 20.280 (72)                | 20.280 (2) (b)                         |

| A                   |       | B                    | C                    |                |
|---------------------|-------|----------------------|----------------------|----------------|
| Statute sections    |       | Old cross references | New cross references |                |
| 77.10 (2) (b)       | ----- | 20.280 (72)          | -----                | 20.280 (2) (b) |
| 77.14               | ----- | 20.550 (29)          | -----                | 20.280 (2) (a) |
| 77.63 (1)           | ----- | 20.552 (55)          | -----                | 20.552 (15)    |
| 77.63 (1a) (b)      | ----- | 20.552 (55)          | -----                | 20.552 (15)    |
| 77.64 (1) (intro)   | ----- | 20.552 (56)          | -----                | 20.552 (16)    |
| 77.68 (1)           | ----- | 20.552 (56)          | -----                | 20.552 (16)    |
| 78.11 (5)           | ----- | 20.800 (1)           | -----                | 20.800 (1) (u) |
| 94.755 (1)          | ----- | 20.140 (47)          | -----                | 20.140 (2) (i) |
| 94.80               | ----- | 20.140 (25) to (30)  | -----                | 20.140 (4) (a) |
| 96.19               | ----- | 20.140 (42m)         | -----                | 20.140 (3) (i) |
| 101.10 (9a)         | ----- | 20.440 (73)          | -----                | 20.440 (1) (u) |
| 101.10 (9a)         | ----- | 20.440 (74)          | -----                | 20.440 (1) (v) |
| 108.14 (12) (d)     | ----- | 20.440 (74)          | -----                | 20.440 (1) (v) |
| 108.14 (17)         | ----- | 20.440 (73)          | -----                | 20.440 (1) (u) |
| 108.14 (17)         | ----- | 20.440 (74)          | -----                | 20.440 (1) (v) |
| 108.20 (3)          | ----- | 20.440 (74)          | -----                | 20.440 (1) (v) |
| 108.20 (5)          | ----- | 20.440 (74)          | -----                | 20.440 (1) (v) |
| 108.20 (6) (twice)  | ----- | 20.440 (74)          | -----                | 20.440 (1) (v) |
| 108.20 (7)          | ----- | 20.440 (74)          | -----                | 20.440 (1) (v) |
| 108.20 (8)          | ----- | 20.440 (74)          | -----                | 20.440 (1) (v) |
| 108.20 (9)          | ----- | 20.440 (74)          | -----                | 20.440 (1) (v) |
| 109.05 (3)          | ----- | 20.705 (44)          | -----                | 20.705 (1) (i) |
| 109.07 (1) (d)      | ----- | 20.705 (1)           | -----                | 20.705 (1) (a) |
| 111.53              | ----- | 20.340 (2)           | -----                | 20.340         |
| 133.06 (1)          | ----- | 20.180 (3)           | -----                | 20.180 (1) (e) |
| 133.06 (3)          | ----- | 20.180 (3)           | -----                | 20.180 (1) (e) |
| 136.13 (3)          | ----- | 20.700 (41)          | -----                | 20.700         |
| 139.11 (3)          | ----- | 20.800 (1)           | -----                | 20.800 (1) (a) |
| 139.13 (twice)      | ----- | 20.670 (1)           | -----                | 20.670 (1)     |
| 139.31 (2)          | ----- | 20.703 (41) (a)      | -----                | 20.703         |
| 139.32 (5)          | ----- | 20.703 (41) (a)      | -----                | 20.703         |
| 139.33 (2)          | ----- | 20.703 (41) (a)      | -----                | 20.703         |
| 142.08 (2)          | ----- | 20.830 (61)          | -----                | 20.830 (3) (g) |
| 145.03 (1)          | ----- | 20.410 (42)          | -----                | 20.410 (1) (g) |
| 149.01 (5)          | ----- | 20.580 (42)          | -----                | 20.580 (1) (h) |
| 149.11 (1)          | ----- | 20.580 (41)          | -----                | 20.580 (1) (g) |
| 163.07 (2)          | ----- | 20.670 (27)          | -----                | 20.670 (3) (a) |
| 184.10 (2)          | ----- | 20.660 (41)          | -----                | 20.660 (1) (g) |
| 196.85 (1)          | ----- | 20.660 (41)          | -----                | 20.660 (1) (g) |
| 196.85 (2) (a)      | ----- | 20.660 (41)          | -----                | 20.660 (1) (g) |
| 196.85 (2) (b)      | ----- | 20.660 (41)          | -----                | 20.660 (1) (g) |
| 200.04 (4)          | ----- | 20.460 (40)          | -----                | 20.460 (1) (g) |
| 200.17 (4m) (twice) | ----- | 20.850 (5)           | -----                | 20.850 (1) (e) |
| 200.18 (4)          | ----- | 20.460 (71)          | -----                | 20.460 (3)     |
| 200.18 (4)          | ----- | 20.460 (72)          | -----                | 20.460 (4)     |
| 200.26 (5) (b)      | ----- | 20.460 (40)          | -----                | 20.460 (1) (g) |
| 251.19              | ----- | 20.180 (3)           | -----                | 20.180         |
| 256.28 (14)         | ----- | 20.780 (1)           | -----                | 20.780         |
| 271.25 (4)          | ----- | 20.180 (3)           | -----                | 20.180         |
| 285.06 (5)          | ----- | 20.488 (1)           | -----                | 20.550 (9)     |
| 957.26 (1m) (intro) | ----- | 20.260 (2)           | -----                | 20.260 (3)     |

SECTION 122. SECTIONS 49 and 108 of this act shall take effect only if no other act passed by the 1965 legislature after October 1, 1965, affects sections 24.085 (1) and 182.60 (10) (a) and (f) of the statutes, or if no other acts are passed by the 1965 legislature after October 1, 1965, which make appropriate the changes made by chapter 163, laws of 1965, in sections 24.085 (1) and 182.60 (10) (a) and (f) of the statutes.

Approved December 6, 1965.